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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

  

Date:  September 28, 2023 

Project:  Multipurpose Laboratory Building 

Job No.: 24600-01 

 

To:  All Planholders and Prospective Bidders 

 

The following changes and/or clarifications are hereby made to the Request for Proposals and shall 

become a part of the RFP dated August 28, 2023. 

1. Potholing or Subsurface Investigation – No potholing information is currently available. 

Proposers shall present a project approach by assuming information shown on the as-built 

drawings is correct.  
 

2. Sea Level Rise – For the purpose of presenting a representative building, the selected 

consultant shall use finished first floor elevation of 18.0’. Proposers shall include in the 

approach a description of how to blend the building surroundings at existing ground 

elevation of 14’+ in respect to ADA compliance and the future underground ultraviolet (UV) 

piping shown in Attachment 1 of this addendum. 
 

3. Chlorine Contact Chamber (CCC) Piping – For purpose of submitting a proposal, proposers 

shall assume the proposed building would need to encroach into the existing underground 

CCC piping area shown in Exhibit 2 of the RFP which would require soil stabilization and 

building foundation on grade beams supported by piles. Proposers are not required to present 

a detailed design of the building foundation; however, shall provide a brief description of the 

foundation and include the name of the geotechnical and structural firms in the proposal. 
 

4. Lab Office – The District has current staffing of two full-time employees for the lab 

department. The selected consultant shall include a design of multi-purpose office space that 

may serve one additional person, such as consultant. 
 

5. As-Built Drawings for Existing Lab Building – See Attachment 2 of this addendum. 
 

6. Existing Lab Building – District preference is to keep the existing lab building operational 

during construction. However, after the pre-proposal meeting, District staff evaluated 

proposers’ concern that it may be impossible to keep the existing lab functional during 

construction. The selected consultant shall present a minimum of two representative 

buildings: 1) demolish the existing building and rent a temporary office trailer for the lab; 2) 

keep the existing lab during construction. 
 

7. Number of Employees – The District anticipates having a total of 31 full-time employees. 

The selected consultant shall design the Boardroom with enough space to accommodate all 

31 employees, five Board members, and appropriate space for future growth.  
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8. Availability of Biogas/Natural Gas – Proposers shall assume that no digester gas or natural 

gas will be available on site to generate heat for the proposed lab building. The selected 

consultant shall attempt to optimize renewable energy for all electrical and mechanical needs 

of the building. Proposers shall discuss the approach in the proposal. 
 

9. Solar Power System – Proposers shall include installation of off-grid standalone solar panels 

for power generation at the new lab building, such as rooftop installation, in the proposal. 

The District is in the process of upgrading its solar photovoltaic system in the Reclamation 

Area to generate power for the treatment facilities unrelated to the new lab building. 
 

10. Electric Vehicle (EV) Parking – The selected consultant shall consult the appropriate 

planning and building department guidelines for the number of EV or clean energy charging 

stations required in the proposed parking lot. 
 

11. Lab Design Project References – Proposers shall include experience on laboratory design 

projects for wastewater or water treatment facilities in the reference section of the proposal. 

The District may not review or consider unrelated references, such as medical or electronics 

laboratory.  
 

12. Geotechnical Reports – See Exhibit 3 of the RFP for geotechnical reports. No additional 

reports are available. 
 

13. Hazardous Materials – The selected consultant shall be prepared to develop proper hazardous 

materials disposal guidelines and include a survey for the existing lab building to identify 

asbestos, lead, and other hazardous materials. 
 

14. Project Schedule – Assuming the project would require City planning approval and building 

permit, the selected consultant shall simultaneously design and apply for the necessary 

permits during the 9-month design phase. The District may consider extending the design 

duration for a more feasible schedule pending permit application timeline, if necessary. 
 

15. Value Engineering – Proposers shall not include an allowance for value engineering in the 

proposal. However, the District may elect to add value engineering in the design scope as a 

contract amendment if deemed necessary for grant application and other purposes. 
 

16. Proposal Page Limit – The page limit for the proposal is 15 pages, including resumes and 

project references. Fee schedule may be on a separate 11” x 17” sheet. Cover page, cover 

letter, and fee schedule are exempt from the maximum 15-page limit. 
 

17. Planning and Building Permits – According to Government Code §53091(d), building 

ordinances of a county or city shall not apply to the location or construction of facilities for 

the production, generation, storage, treatment, or transmission of water, wastewater, or 

electrical energy by a local agency. In addition, LGVSD is zoned Public/Quasi-Public 

District (P/QP). The selected consultant shall discuss anticipated planning and building 

permit requirements for the proposed lab building as it relates to the Government Code 

§53091(d) and pertinent City ordinance sections. 
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Questions Received from Proposers: 

The following questions were submitted before 9/28/2023. Questions that are received after the 

RFP question deadline may not be answered in an addendum. LGVSD responses to the questions 

are in bold. 

Q1. 6.0 Proposal Requirements and Contents has conflicting information on the page limit. 

Is the page limit 10 or 15 pages? Are resumes included in the page limit? If so, are you 

expecting full resumes for the Prime Consultant team and resumes for all Sub 

Consultants? 

Response: See Item No. 16 above. Proposers shall include resumes highlighting 

relevant projects for key members of the project team. 

 

Q2. Scope item E describes Bidding Phase Services only. Please clarify Construction Phase 

services vs. Construction Management and Inspection Services listed in section F. Do 

you require a full‐time on‐site construction manager that acts on behalf of the District? 

Response: Construction Phase Services are related to technical questions that 

would need to be addressed by the design architect during construction, such as 

providing responses to RFI’s and submittals. Construction Management and 

Inspection Services refer to a full-time on-site construction manager and/or 

inspector acting on behalf of the District to interact with the contractor during 

construction, including but not limited to inspections, conducting progress 

meetings, and document control. 

 

Q3. Seeing that questions aren't due until the 28th and the proposal is due on the 5th, would 

you consider answering questions before the 28th or extending the due date out a week? 

Response: The proposal deadline will not be extended unless otherwise noted via 

another addendum. 

 

Q4. ‘Maximum Number of Pages: 15 single-sided pages including resumes and list of 

sample projects. Fee schedule may be on a separate 11” x 17” sheet. Cover page, cover 

letter, and fee schedule are exempt from the maximum 10-page limit’. Please confirm 

the maximum number of pages, 10 or 15? 

Response: See Item No. 16 above.  

 

Q5. Are Hourly Rates required for the prime and for the subconsultants? 

Response: Yes, the information can be included on the separate 11” x 17” fee 

schedule. 

 

Q6. Is it possible to change the 15-page limit to exclude the Key Personnel resumes? Or 

include resumes in an appendix section that does not count to the 15-page limit? 

Response: See Item No. 16 above.  

 

Q7. Will you be sending out a mass answer to all asked questions after the 9/28 deadline? 

Will you be sending our periodic answers? 
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Response: The District anticipates this addendum should provide clarifications to 

all questions received during the pre-proposal meeting and before 9/28. Questions 

received on 9/28 will be answered in the future addendum.  

 

Q8. Who is the Authority Having Jurisdiction (A.H.J.) over this project? City of San 

Rafael? 

Response: See Item No. 17 above. 

 

Q9. Who will be the CEQA Lead Agency for this project? 

Response:  Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

 

Q10. Should preparation of full CEQA documents, and required investigations and 

community outreach be included in scope and fee? 

Response: Yes, it will be the selected consultant’s responsibility to conduct 

environmental reviews pursuant to CEQA and prepare all necessary CEQA 

documents.  

 

Q11. Will a detailed program for the building and different departments be provided or 

should the design team include programming services in scope and fee? 

Response:  The design team selected shall include programming services only for 

the new building. Note that only lab staff will be working in the proposed lab 

building and that other department staff will have or already have their 

designated workstations elsewhere. 

 

Q12. Will new laboratory program be based on existing laboratory? 

Response: Most features of the existing laboratory may not be up to current 

standards. Design the program to allow flexibility and future expandability. 

 

Q13. Will drawings of the existing laboratory building be provided? 

Response: See Item No. 5 above. 

 

Q14. Will a complete equipment list be provided? 

Response: See RFP for a list of existing equipment that needs to be accommodated 

in the new lab building. Proposers shall use their best judgement on additional 

equipment based on prior experience in designing lab buildings for wastewater or 

water treatment facilities, and are welcome to visit the existing lab to gather 

additional information as necessary. 

 

Q15. Will a Hazmat list and MSDS sheets be provided? Will LGVSD be working with a 

Hazmat consultant directly or should the design team include a consultant for these 

services? 

Response: Available Hazmat list and MSDS sheets will be provided to the selected 

consultant after contract award. Proposers shall include in the proposal an 

allowance for a Hazmat subconsultant in the design team. 
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Q16. How many full-time employees (Lab + Office + Education Center) should be accounted 

for in the new building? 

Response: See Item No. 7 above. There are currently two full-time employees at 

the existing lab building. The education center is for visitors. It is anticipated that 

no full-time employees will be permanently working in the education center. 

 

Q17. How many people should the Classroom / Board Room be able to accommodate? 

Response: The dual-purpose classroom and Boardroom shall be able to 

accommodate the 31 full-time employees, 5 Board members, and additional space 

for visitors and consultants. 

 

Q18. The RFP doesn’t mention an office program, but there are offices in the existing 

laboratory building. Will offices be required in the new building? If yes, what is the 

expected program (number of employees, open vs private offices, conference spaces, 

amenities, etc.)? 

Response: See applicable responses above. The selected consultant has the option 

to include open or private offices, conference spaces, amenities, etc. in the design; 

however, shall provide sufficient justifications, advantages, and disadvantages for 

further review by the District. 

 

Q19. What are the required deliverables for the 3 conceptual design schemes (ie: interior and 

exterior plans, finishes, interior and exterior renderings)? 

Response: Each design scheme shall at a minimum include plans, finishes, and 

renderings for the exterior, and any additional information that may be necessary 

for the District to make an informative decision. The selected consultant shall 

develop interior plans, finishes, and renderings for the selected design scheme and 

shall be prepared to make modifications per District comments. 

 

Q20. What is the required scale for the physical model? 

Response: The District has no preference of the scale of the physical model. The 

selected consultant has the prerogative to select an appropriate scale that would 

allow the District to visualize the spatial relationship between the new building 

and its surroundings.  

 

Q21. Has a sea level rise study been done? 

Response: No. The District is in the planning phase of developing an in-depth sea 

level rise mitigation study to identify the areas of vulnerability. However, 

proposers shall assume a finished floor elevation of 18.0’ for the building in the 

proposal. 

 

Q22. What is the status of entitlement and permitting? 

Response: None has been initiated by the District for this project. Proposers shall 

investigate and determine appropriate entitlement and permitting requirements 

for the building and provide a summary of their understanding of applicable 

codes or City ordinance in the proposal. 
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Q23. Any preliminary application has been filled with utility providers? 

Response: None has been initiated by the District for this project. The selected 

consultant shall include utility applications such as PG&E, cable, telephone, 

water, etc. in the design phase. 

 

Q24. Will we be expected to provide a Topographic Survey or will one be provided? 

Response: The selected consultant shall include an allowance for topographic 

surveys in the proposal. 

 

Q25. Does the district have record topo of the site that can be shared now? 

Response: See response to Q24. 

 

Q26. Is it possible to get a copy now of the geotechnical work done to date by Miller Pacific? 

Response: See Item No. 12 above. 

 

Q27. Has the district had success in the past getting grant and foundation funding? From 

what sources? 

Response: The District received two grants from the California Energy 

Commission for biogas energy recovery system and renewable natural gas fueling 

stations. Also, the District received WaterSMART grant(s) from the USBR for the 

construction and expansion of the LGVSD Recycled Water Facility. 

 

Q28. Do you have a plot of the PG&E easement that constrains the building design? 

Response: See Attachment 3 of this addendum for legal descriptions and plats of 

the PG&E easement. 

 

Q29. May we have a copy of the Sea Level Rise and Storm Surge study that determined the 

EL 18.0? 

Response: See response to Q21. 

 

Q30. For the Education Center, is the expectation for the architect to deliver a finished 

interior space for that second floor area that can feature ‘future’ interactive exhibits? 

OR is exhibit design for this area a part of the scope of services? If so, what are the 

expectations for the interactive exhibit design scope? 

Response: It is anticipated that the selected consultant shall prepare a final 

interactive exhibit design to be incorporated into the bidding documents for 

construction as part of the project. 

 

Q31. Does the exhibit design scope of work include educational content creation and 

conceptual approach in collaboration with LGVSD? Or does LGVSD have an outline 

of intended learning outcomes, approximate content and criteria for exhibits to support 

those outcomes to be issued to the firm? 

Response: The exhibit design scope of work shall include educational content 

creation and conceptual approach in collaboration with LGVSD. The District does 

not have an outline for intended learning outcomes, content and criteria for the 

exhibits.  
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Q32. What is the targeted age range for the education center audience/users? 

Response: No specific age range. The intent of the education center is to educate 

the public. 

 

Q33. For exhibit design scope, how many exhibits do you envision? Four (4)? - One (1) for 

each initiative: 1.wastewater collection & treatment processes, 2. recycled water 

production, 3. water conservation, 4.proper item disposal? 

Response: The selected consultant shall use their best judgement to determine the 

number of exhibits based on proposed available space. It is the intent for the 

District to include at least one exhibit for: wastewater collection, wastewater 

treatment, recycled water production, and other items as outlined in the RFP. 

 

Q34. The reference link provided for the interactive space includes physical object 

interaction paired with digital info/response – do you expect each exhibit to be physical 

digital exhibits? 

Response: Proposers shall include in the proposal an allowance to develop both 

options for District review. 

 

Q35. If exhibits include digital experiences/interactivity, what is the scope expectation for 

the specification of digital hardware and software? 

Response: See response to Q34. 

 

Q36. If exhibits include digital experience/interactivity, does the scope include creation and 

development of the digital experience/content? If yes, do you have information at this 

time to help quantify the digital content creation and development scope/budget?  Or 

should an allowance be noted for further definition once scope is quantified? 

Response: See response to Q34. 

 

Q37. What portion of the overall construction budget is allocated for the education center? 

Response: The construction budget provided in the RFP is a preliminary number 

for the entire building and ancillary components. A budget allocation with 

percentage for each major component is not currently available. The selected 

consultant shall be responsible for preparing cost estimates based on the final 

design selected by the District. 

This addendum consists of forty-nine (49) pages including this page and attachments. 

Acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing in the space provided below. Submit an 

original copy of this addendum cover page along with the proposal. 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District:  Proposer: ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

   ____________________________________________ 

 

Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer  (Authorized Signature)   (Date)  
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